




LISTING OF ACRONYMS 
 
Acronym  Title 
AASHTO  American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials 
ADA   American with Disabilities Act 
AOR   Annual Operating Report 
BOCC   Board of County Commissioners 
BPAC   Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
CAC   Citizen Advisory Council 
CBD   Central Business District 
CFR   Code of Federal Regulations 
CMAQ   Congestion Management and Air Quality 
CTC   Community Transportation Coordinator 
CTD   Commission for Transportation Disadvantaged 
DCA   Department of Community Affairs 
DEP   Department of Environmental Protection 
DOPA   Designated Official Planning Agency 
DRI   Development of Regional Impacts 
EPA   Environmental Protection Agency 
F.A.C.   Florida Administrative Code 
FAW   Florida Administrative Weekly 
FDOT   Florida Department of Transportation 
FEMA   Federal Emergency Management Agency 
FHWA   Florida Highway Administration 
FR   Federal Register 
FTA   Federal Transit Administration 
FTP   Federal Transportation Plan 
FVS   First Vehicle Services, Space Coast Area Transit’s vehicle maintenance contractor 
GIS   Geographic Information System 
GPS   Global Positioning System 
HOV   High Occupancy Vehicle 
HUD   Housing and Urban Development 
IU   Indiana University, Jewel of the Midwest 
LCB   Local Coordinating Board 
LEP   Limited English Proficiency 
LOS   Level of Service 
LRTP   Long Range Transportation Plan 
MAP-21  Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
MNET   Medicaid Non-Emergency Transportation 
MOA   Memorandum of Agreement 
MOU   Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO   Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MSA   Metropolitan Statistical Area 
NTD   National Transit Database 
O&M   Operating and Maintenance 
PD&E   Project Development and Environment 
PIO   Public Information Office 
PMP   Program Management Plan 
RPC   Regional Planning Council 
SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users 
SCAT   Space Coast Area Transit 
SHS   State Highway System 
Space Coast TPO The transportation planning organization in Brevard County. 
SR   State Road 
STIP   State Transportation Improvement Program 



STTF   State Transportation Trust Fund 
TAC   Technical Advisory Committee 
TDTF   Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund 
TDP   Transportation Development Plan 
TDSP   Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan 
TIP   Transportation Improvement Program 
TMA   Transportation Management Area 
TMS   TMS of Brevard, Inc., the Medicaid Non-Emergency Transportation contractor 
TOA   Tindale-Oliver and Associates, Inc. 
TPO   Transportation Planning Organization 
UA   Urbanized Area 
UPWP   Unified Planning Work Program 
USDOT  U.S. Department of Transportation 
VDA   Volunteer Driver Agreement (for VPSI, Inc.) 
VIM   Volunteers In Motion 
VMT   Vehicle Miles Traveled 
VPSI   VPSI, Inc., Space Coast Area Transit’s vanpool management contractor 
vRide   vRide, Inc., Space Coast Area Transit’s vanpool management contractor  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Introduction of Members 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
None 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Updated Membership Listing 
 
 
 

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

I 



BREVARD COUNTY 
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR 

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED PROGRAM 
2015 

 
 

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION 
COORDINATOR (CTC) 

DESIGNATED OFFICIAL PLANNING 
AGENCY (DOPA) 

STATE MEDICAID OPERATOR 

James Liesenfelt, Director 
Transit Services Department 
Space Coast Area Transit 
401 S. Varr Ave. 
Cocoa, FL 32922 
Phone – (321) 635-7815 
Fax      -  (321) 633-1905 
E-mail- Jim.Liesenfelt@brevardcounty.us 

Leigh Holt 
Multimodal Program Manager, TPO 
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Wy Bld A 
Melbourne, FL 32940 
Phone - (321) 690-6890 
Fax      - (321) 690-6827 
E-mail – Leigh.Holt@brevardcounty.us 

 
 

LCB ATTORNEY COMMISSION FOR TRANS. 
DISADVANTAGED 

 

Matthew Soss 
Assistant County Attorney 
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way., 
Bldg. C 
Melbourne, FL 32940 
Phone - (321) 633-2090 
Fax      - (321) 633-2096 
E-mail Matthew.Soss@brevardcounty.us  

Bill Hearndon 
Area 4 Project Manager 
605 Suwannee St., MS-49 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 
Phone - (850) 410-5713 
Fax      - (850) 410-5752 
TDD       1-800-983-2435 
E-mail – Bill.Hearndon@dot.state.fl.us 

 

 
Name and Address Representing *Term LCB Status 
Mayor Rocky Randels 
City of Cape Canaveral 
P.O. Box 308 
Cape Canaveral, FL 32920 
Phone – (321) 784-5694 
Fax – (321) 868-1248 
Email – R.Randels@cityofcapecanaveral.org 

Chair Indefinite Chair 
 

Diane Poitras 
Florida Department of Transportation 
133 S. Semoran Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32807-3203 
Phone - (407) 482-7860 
Fax      - (407) 275-4188 
E-mail – Diane.Poitras@DOT.state.fl.us 

Florida Dept. of 
Transportation 

Indefinite  

Maryjane Wysocki 
Agency for Persons with Disabilities 
305 East Drive, Suite L 
Melbourne, FL 32904 
Phone – (321) 674-1816 
Fax      - (321) 409-6519 
Email   - maryjane_wysocki@apdcares.org 

Florida Dept. of Children & 
Families 

Indefinite  

William Crane, Exceptional Education Spct 
Transportation Department 
Brevard County School Board 
2901 W. King St. 
Cocoa, FL 32926 
Phone - (321) 633-3680 x14006 
Fax      - (321) 633-3693 
E-mail – Crane.William@brevardschools.org 

Public Education Community Indefinite  



Name and Address Representing *Term LCB Status 
Almetia Britton 
Vocational Rehabilitation 
1970 Michigan Ave, Bldg A 
Cocoa, FL 32926 
Phone – (321) 690-3280 
Fax     -  (321) 690-3279 
E-mail – Almetia.britton@vr.fldoe.org 

Florida Dept. of Education Indefinite  

Dennis Vannorsdall 
Veteran Services Office 
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way Bldg. B 
Viera, FL 32940 
Phone - (321) 633-2012 
Fax      - (321) 637-5432 
E-mail – 
dennis.vannorsdall@brevardcounty.us  

Florida Dept. of Veteran’s 
Affairs 
 

Indefinite  

VACANT 
 
 

Florida Assoc. of Community 
Action Agencies rep. 
Economically Disadvantaged 

Indefinite  

Kyle Andrews 
151 Riverside Drive 
Cape Canaveral, FL 32920 
Phone – (321) 799-3302 
E-mail – kyleinfla@gmail.com 

Persons over Sixty Rep. 
Elderly of the County 

Expires  
05/17 

 

David Ryan 
442 Fourth Avenue 
Indialantic, FL 32903 
Phone – (321) 258-7017 
E-mail ryand97@gmail.com 

Disabled Representative Expires  
05/17 

 

Linda Howard 
946 Golden Beach Blvd. 
Indian Harbor Beach, FL  32937 
Phone - (321) 773-2691 
E-mail – lhoward@specialgatherings.com 

Citizen Advocate Expires  
10/18 
 

Vice-Chair 

Sara Ann Conkling 
6900 N. Cocoa Blvd, Unit 6302 
Cocoa, FL 32922 
Phone – (321) 633-0716 
FAX – (321) 633-0716 
E-mail – saraann7@gmail.com 

Citizen Advocate/user Expires  
10/18 
 

 

Isabelle Zoerner 
School Board of Brevard County 
Elementary Program 
2700 Judge Fran Jamieson Way 
Melbourne, FL 32940-6679 
Phone - (321) 633-1000 X323 
Fax      - (321) 633-3520 
E-mail   Zoerner.Isabelle@brevardschools.org 

State Coordinating Council 
for Early Childhood Services 
Children at Risk 

Indefinite  

Randy Hunt 
Senior Resource Alliance 
988 Woodcock Road, Suite 200 
Orlando, FL 32803 
Phone – (407) 514-1802 
Fax      -  (407) 228-1835 
E-mail   huntr@sraflorida.org 

Florida Dept. of Elder Affairs Indefinite  

VACANT Private For Profit or Non-
Profit Trans. Industry 

Indefinite  



Name and Address Representing *Term LCB Status 
Benjamin Akinola 
Agency for Health Care Admin. 
400 W. Robinson St. S-309 
Orlando, Fl. 32801 
Phone - (407) 420-2509 
FAX    - (407) 245-0847 
E-mail – Benjamin.Akinola@ahca.myflorida.com 

Florida Agency for Health 
Care Administration 

Indefinite  

VACANT 
 
 

Regional Workforce Board 
 

Indefinite  

VACANT 
 
 

Representative Local Medical 
Community 

Indefinite  

 
 

Alternates 
Name and Address Representing *Term LCB Status 
Samuel Weekley 
Florida Department of Transportation 
133 S. Semoran Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32807-3203 
Phone - (407) 482-7860 
Fax      - (407) 275-4188 
E-mail – Samuel.Weekley@DOT.state.fl.us 

Florida Dept. of 
Transportation 

Indefinite  

VACANT 
Fl. Dept. of Children & Families 
400 W. Robinson St., S-430 
Orlando, FL  32801 
Phone - (407) 245-0440 x602 
Fax      - (407) 245-0575 

Florida Dept. of Children & 
Families 

Indefinite  

VACANT 
 

Public Education Community 
 
 

Indefinite  

VACANT Vocational Rehabilitation or 
Division of Blind Services 

Indefinite 
 
 

 

VACANT  Florida Dept. of Veteran 
Affairs Rep. Veterans 
 

Indefinite  

VACANT Florida Assoc. of Community 
Action Agencies rep. 
Economically Disadvantaged 

Indefinite  

James C. Tapp, Jr. 
132 Kyle Court NE 
Palm Bay, FL 32907 
Phone – (321) 724-4851 
               (321) 693-5516 
E-mail – tappsdream@att.net 

Persons over Sixty rep. 
Elderly of the County 

Expires 
05/17  

 

Larry Fowler 
Space Coast Center for Independent Living 
571 Haverty Court 
Rockledge, FL 32955 
Phone – (321) 633-6011 
E-mail – lfowler@sccil.net  

Disabled Representative  Expires 
05/17 
 
 

 

mailto:lfowler@sccil.net


Name and Address Representing *Term LCB Status 
Tammy Harris 
Brevard County Code Enforcement 
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way 
Viera, FL 32940 
Phone – (321) 633-2086 
E-mail – Tammy.Harris@brevardcounty.us 

Citizen Advocate Expires 
10/18 
 
 

 

Felicia Wilson 
1418 Brook Drive 
Titusville, FL 32780 
Phone – (321) 269-4624 
E-mail – FRW263@aol.com  

Citizen Advocate/System 
User 

Expires 
05/17 
  

 

VACANT Local Representative for 
Children at Risk 

Indefinite 
 
 

 

Sarah Lightell 
Senior Resource Alliance 
988 Woodcock Rd., Suite 200 
Orlando, Fl. 32803 
Phone – (407) 514-1816 
Fax      - (407) 228-1800 
E-mail – lightells@sraflorida.org 

Florida Dept. of Elder Affairs Indefinite  

VACANT Private for Profit or Non-
Profit Trans. Industry 
 

Indefinite  
 

Charlotte Keller 
Agency for Health Care Admin. 
400 W. Robinson St. S-309 
Orlando, Fl. 32806 
Phone - (407) 420-2496 
FAX    - (407) 245-0847 
E-mail – Charlotte.Keller@ahca.myflorida.com 

Designee Agency for Health 
Care Admin. 

Indefinite  

VACANT Regional Workforce Board 
 
 

Indefinite  

VACANT Representative Local Medical 
Community 
 

Indefinite  

 
11/16/15 

  
 

 
 
  





 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Approval of Meeting Minutes for August 17, 2015 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
Approve the Meeting Minutes for August 17, 2015 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Draft Meeting Minutes, August 17, 2015 
 
 
 
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

II 



AGENDA  
AUGUST 17, 2015 

LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR 
TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED SERVICES 

 
SPACE COAST ROOM 

BUILDING C, 2ND FLOOR 
2725 JUDGE FRAN JAMIESON WAY 

VIERA, FLORIDA 32940 
10:15 A.M. CALL TO ORDER 

 
 
Meeting called to order at 10:15am. 
 

I. INTRODUCTION OF MEMBERS  
 

Member Representing 2/23/15 5/18/15 8/17/15 
Present Absent Present Absent Present Absent 

Mayor Rocky Randels, 
Chair 

Elected Official X  X  X  

Vacant FL Dept of Children 
& Families - - - - - - 

Diane Poitras 
 

FL Dept of 
Transportation X  X  X  

William Crane Public Education 
Community  X X  X  

Almetia Britton 
 

FL Dept of 
Education X   X X  

Dennis Vannorsdall 
 

FL Dept of Veteran’s 
Affairs  X X  X  

Vacant FL Assoc of Comm 
Action Agencies - - - - - - 

Kyle Andrews Persons over 60 
Representative X  X  X  

David Ryan Disabled 
Representative X  X   X 

Linda Howard 
Vice-Chair 

Citizen Advocate 
 X  X  X  

Vacant State Services - 
Children at Risk X  X  - - 

Randy Hunt FL Dept of Elder 
Affairs  X X  X  

Benjamin Akinola 
 

FL Agency for 
Health Care Admin  X  X  X 

Sara Ann Conkling Citizen Advocate / 
User X  X  X  

Vacant 
 

Private Trans. 
Industry - - - - - - 

Alternates  Present Absent Present Absent Present Absent 

Samuel Weekley FL Dept of 
Transportation  X  X  X 

  

DRAFT 



James Tapp, Jr. Persons over 60 
Representative  X X   X 

Jack Giordano 
 

FL Dept of 
Education X  X   X 

Tammy Harris Citizen Advocate 
 X  X   X 

Sarah Lightell 
 

FL Dept of Elders 
Affairs X   X  X 

Charlotte Keller Agency for Health 
Care Admin. X  X  X  

Felicia Wilson Citizen Advocate / 
User X  X  X  

Jeremy Brogdon Disable 
Representative - - X   X 

 
James Liesenfelt, CTC/Space Coast Area Transit/DOPA 
Matthew Soss, County Attorney’s Office  
Leigh Holt, Space Coast TPO 
Bill Hearndon, Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Carmen Baez, Space Coast Area Transit 
Scott Nelson, Space Coast Area Transit 
Joe Lammon, Space Coast Area Transit 
Pat Ryan, Space Coast Area Transit 
Lori Hamilton, Space Coast Area Transit/Volunteers In Motion 
Colby Stallings, Space Coast Area Transit 
Namich Rodriguez, Space Coast Area Transit 
Cathy Lively, Space Coast Area Transit 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
No public comment. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES, MAY 18, 2015 
 
Sara Ann Conkling – Page 14.  Change sale tax to read gas tax. 
Felicia Wilson – was in attendance at the May 18th meeting. 
 
Motion to approve the minutes as corrected by Linda Howard.  Motion seconded by Dennis 
Vannorsdall.  Motion approved unanimously. 
  
James Tapp - Clarification that the Phase II will be part of West Melbourne not the field of dreams. 
 
 
REPORT - COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR’S REPORT, Jim Liesenfelt 
 
Highlighted items 
 
 

DRAFT 

DRAFT 



• Staff members have been attending the FDOT and FPTA Professional Development 
Workshop, National Transit Training and Center for Urban Transportation Research 
Training. 

• Board of County Commissioners has balanced the budget.  Notice will be going out and the 
Board will vote on approving next month.  Route 7 has been funded in next year’s budget.   

• In the next month, we will be performing our annual route re-working. 
• We have been implementing our fare box system.  
• Congress has extended their authorization bill and has released the funding for the next 

year.  
• Section 5310, the Enhanced Mobility Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities, Federally 

funded grant that is distributed through the FDOT.  They will be hosting grant workshops in 
October/November.  Samuel Weekley’s contact information is listed to contact to get 
information on the workshop. 

• Carmen Baez updated the Board on the recent speaking events and travel training.   
• CTC Evaluation will be coming up and will need to be presented to a subcommittee.  Linda 

Howard and Sara Ann Conkling have volunteered to be on the subcommittee. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the dividing lines of the North and South Area and FDOT Service 
Development Grants.   
 
Mayor Randels read out loud the memo to the Board of County Commissioners regarding funding 
public transportation for the Transportation Disadvantaged, as requested at the last LCB meeting. 
 
 
 
REPORTS - TD PLANNING GRANT REPORT  
 
No comments. 
 
 
REPORTS - SCAT TD PERFORMANCE REPORT CARD 
 

• Discussion was held on the amount of telephone call received. 
• The Customer Service department has been working hard to increase the amount of TD 

trips, so we can bill out the TD grant.  They have met their goal for the past four months. 
 
 
REPORTS - VOLUNTEERS IN MOTION REPORT  
 
Lori Hamilton updated the Board on the coordination with City of Satellite Beach Fire Department 
on a new community outreach program. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS - TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED SERVICE PLAN UPDATE  
 
Just an update on where we are with the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Update.   
Please review pages 33-37, 42-48 and 53-33 and provide staff with any comments.   
Discussion ensued regarding transportation deserts in the County, 9th cent gas tax, and no-show 
policy.  Jim Liesenfelt discussed with the board changing the language to Goal 1 and 3, attending 
TD Day, Call Hold Time Goal and funding for Board Holidays. 

DRAFT 



 
 
OLD BUSINESS – MEMBER APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
We have received 7 applications for the 3 open seats.  We were prepared to set up the 
subcommittee vote and hit two issues.  Staff found out that Maryjane Wysocki, who is the LCB’s 
subcommittee appointee, is no longer working for the Agency for Persons with Disabilities.  Also, 
the TPO, who must confirm the appointments, does not meet in August. 
 
We are requesting that the LCB appoint another member to the Member Selection subcommittee.  
Almetia Britton has volunteered to be on the Member Selection Committee.  Unanimously 
accepted.  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS – ANNUAL OPERATING REPORT, Colby Stallings 
 
Presentation highlights 

• What is the Annual Operating Report?  Report the TD related services in Brevard County 
and is required under Statue 427 

• AOR Items to be considered 
o Based on the State’s Fiscal Year, not the County 
o Does not include all transportation provide by SCAT 
o Some data is estimated from samples 
o AOR is submitted to the TD Commission and they may request clarification and 

changes 
• Transportation Operators consists of Space Coast Area Transit, vRide, Inc., School Board 

of Brevard 
• Passenger Trip Information 

o Paratransit/Contracts/VIM = 603,454 
o vRide, Inc. = 15,832 
o School Board = 12,595 
o Fixed Route Passes = 428,640 
o Total = 1,060,521 

• Trips by Funding Source 
o Agency for Person with Disabilities is  34,957 (same) 
o TD Commission is 65,014 (same) 
o Vocational Rehab is 62,000 (down) 
o Department of Elder Affairs is 27,974 (same) 
o FDOT is 329,676 (same) 
o Local Government is 342,421 (same) 
o Local Non-Government is 192,837 

• Reason for the Trip 
o Medical is 110,516 (up) 
o Employment is 342,162 (up) 
o Education/Training/Daycare is 267,880 (down 2%) 
o Nutritional is 23,367 
o Life-Sustaining/Other is 316,510 

• Trip Information 
o Unduplicated Head Count is 17,048 
o Unmet Trip Requests (TD only) is 35 

DRAFT 



o Passenger No-Shows are 10,318 (down) 
o Complaints are 8 (down) 
o Commendations are 128 (down) 

• Vehicle Information 
o Vehicle Miles is 2,755,511 
o Revenue Miles is 2,471,139 
o Road calls is 41 
o Chargeable Accidents is 12 (down) 
o Non-Chargeable Accidents is 17 (down) 
o Total vehicles is 196 
o Wheel-Chair Accessible is 100 

• Employee Information 
o Full Time Drivers is 65 (increase) 
o Part Time Drivers is 9 (increase) 
o Volunteer Drivers is 105 (increase) 
o Dispatch related is 10 
o Administrative is 6 
o Management is 7 

• Revenue/Expenses 
o Revenue is $5,424,787 
o Expenses is $5,469,261 

• 2013/2014 compared to 2014/2015 
o Trips 1,076,425 to 1,060,521 (vanpools are down) 
o Revenue Miles 2,6189,791 to 2,471,139 
o Accidents (chargeable) 14 to 12 (down) 
o Expenses $4,862,409 to $5,469,261 (varies) 
o Revenues $5,972,971 to $5,424,787 (varies) 

 
Motion by to approve the Annual Operating Report by Sara Ann Conkling.  Seconded by   
Felicia Wilson.  Motion approved unanimously. 
 
 
MEMBER REPORTS  
 
Sara Ann Conkling – Discussed meeting with John Denninghoff, Public Works Director, and 
Commissioner Barfield regarding the 9th cent gas tax. 
 
Leigh Holt – Discussed the Transportation Planning Organization’s Long Range Plan, which is 
updated every 5 years and they are opening up for public comment until October 8th. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned. 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Public Comment 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
None 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

III 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Community Transportation Coordinator’s (CTC) Report 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Jim Liesenfelt or designee may present other written or verbal information at the meeting. 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
None 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
CTC Report 
 
 
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

IV.A. 



 

CTC REPORT 
 
 

Fixed Route Service 
 
Ridership has increased in the entire fiscal year about 1.1% for a total of 2,353,080 passenger trips.  A 
ridership chart is attached.  This number is still very tentative, as we haven’t been able to have time to verify 
these numbers at this time.   
 
 
Budget 
 
Our fixed route and paratransit service levels will not change in Fiscal Year 2015/2016.  Included in the 
budget is full local funding of the “new” Route 7 in Rockledge/Viera that started as a FDOT Service 
Development Grant in October 2013.  Also, there is no fare increase scheduled for this year.   
 
 
Legislative Issues 
 
There hasn’t been any bills filed that effort our services directly, so far for the 2016 Legislative Session.  A 
recently filed bill, HB155 is known as the “Lynx privation bill.”  The bill will restructure the Board of the 
Central Florida Regional Transportation Authority, which is the official name of Lynx and require that the 
Agency issue an RFP to obtain private management of the Authority.  Original discussion of the bill included 
a requirement that all transit agencies look at privation, however, that provision was not included in the filed 
bill.  We will be watching this bill, as of October 30th, there is no Senate companion bill filed.  
 
 
Section 5310, Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with 
Disabilities 
 
Attached is a page that provides details on the Grant Workshop that will be hosted by the Florida 
Department of Transportation for those interested in applying for Federal Transit Administration Section 
5310, 5311, 5316 or 5317 funds.  
 
 
Speaking Engagements 
 
Carmen Baez, our Customer Service Supervisor, has been busy spreading the news about Space Coast 
Area Transit’s services in the past few months.  Below is a brief summary of her efforts: 
 
 

• Home School Titusville/ Orlando Kids , 401 S Varr Ave Cocoa FL 32922 
15 kids 10 Adults   

 
• Vocational Rehabilitation Michigan Ave, Cocoa Fl.  

15 outside venders  
 

• Central Library Talking Books, 308 Forrest Ave Cocoa FL, 32922 
Fair, Many participates  



 
• Barefoot Bay Community Center June 23, 2015 (Emergency Evacuations) 

100 Barefoot Bay Blvd, Barefoot Bay FL 32276 
 
 
 
Volunteer of the year 
 
Joseph Leacock, a volunteer with our Volunteers in Motion program was named by the Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged as their Volunteer of the Year for 2015.  Attached to the CTC report is a 
press release that summarizes Joseph’s accomplishment. 
  
State of the County  
 
Stockton Whitten, Brevard County County Manager recently gave his State of the County speech.  Among 
the County accomplishments that Stockton highlighted were our new mobile website and our efforts in 
building bus shelters.  Copies of Stockton’s slides are attached.   

 
 
 
 
 
  

















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Transportation Disadvantaged Planning Grant Report 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached report is for the LCB member’s information and review. 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
None 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
TD Planning Grant Report 
 
 
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

IV.B. 













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Performance Report Card 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Transportation Disadvantaged Performance Report Card will be sent under separate cover. 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
None 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

IV.C. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Volunteers in Motion Report 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Volunteers In Motion quarterly report will be sent under separate cover. 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
None 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

IV.D. 





 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Update (TDSP) Major Update 2016-2020 Adoption 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As stated in Florida Administrative Rule 41.2.009,  

“In consultation with the Community Transportation Coordinator and Coordinating Board, each 
Metropolitan Planning Organization or Designated Official Planning Agency shall develop and 
annually update, a Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. The Transportation Disadvantaged 
Service Plan shall be developed in a manner which assures that local planning agencies, 
responsible for preparing comprehensive plans, have the opportunity to review and comment on it, 
and shall not be inconsistent with applicable local government comprehensive plans, MPO long 
range comprehensive plans, transit development plans, and other local, regional, and state 
transportation plans. The Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan shall be reviewed for final 
disposition by the Coordinating Board and the Commission.” 
 
Attached is the final draft of the TDSP with changes suggested by the LCB at the August meeting.  
There were no further changes suggested by any outside agencies.   
  
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
It is requested that the Local Coordinating Board approve the TDSP via a roll call vote. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Final Draft Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan 
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

V.A. 









Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan|  ii 

 

Inter-county Services ........................................................................................................................... 52 

Emergency Preparedness and Response ............................................................................................. 52 

Educational Efforts and Marketing ...................................................................................................... 52 

Acceptable Alternatives ....................................................................................................................... 54 

Service Standards ................................................................................................................................ 54 

Local Complaint and Grievance Procedures and Process .................................................................... 57 

Community Transportation Coordinator Monitoring Procedures of Operators and Coordination 
Contractors .......................................................................................................................................... 58 

Cost/Revenue Allocation and Rate Structure Justification ..................................................................... 58 

Section 3: Quality Assurance ...................................................................................................................... 59 

CTC Evaluation Process ........................................................................................................................... 59 

Appendix A: Summary of Existing Plans and Documents ........................................................................... 60 

Appendix B: Local Coordinating Board Certification ................................................................................... 70 

Appendix C: No-Show Policy ....................................................................................................................... 71 

Appendix D: Vehicle Inventory ................................................................................................................... 72 

Appendix E: System Safety Program Plan Certification .............................................................................. 73 

Appendix F: Space Coast Area Transit Grievance Procedure ...................................................................... 74 

Appendix G: FCTD Rate Model Calculation spreadsheets .......................................................................... 75 

Appendix H: Space Coast Area Transit TDLCB CTC Evaluation and Corrective Action Plan ........................ 76 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1: Brevard County Population ........................................................................................................... 11 

Table 2: Population by Municipality ........................................................................................................... 11 

Table 3: Age Distribution ............................................................................................................................ 12 

Table 4: Income Distribution ....................................................................................................................... 12 

Table 5: Disabled Population ...................................................................................................................... 13 

Table 6: Employment Characteristics (April 2015) ..................................................................................... 13 

Table 7: Brevard County General TD Population Forecast ......................................................................... 15 

Table 8: Brevard County’s Annual Trip Demand ......................................................................................... 16 

Table 9: Brevard County CTC Trend Analysis – Effectiveness Measures .................................................... 17 

Table 10: Brevard County CTC Trend Analysis – Effectiveness Measures .................................................. 19 































































§̈¦I-95

OSCEOLA

ORANGE

INDIAN RIVER

KENNEDY PKW
Y S

46 HWY

192 HWY

U
S 1 H

W
Y N

BEACH RD

NASA CSWY

SOUTH ST

PINEDA CSWY
COLUMBIA BLVD

KING ST W

POST RD

D
AI

R
Y 

R
D

AURORA RD

H
O

P
KIN

S AV
 S

SO
U

TH
 PATR

IC
K

 D
R

520 HWY

401 HWY

MALABAR RD SE

VALK ARIA

RD

FAY BLVD

OAK ST

BARNES BLVD

524 HWY

C
AR

PE
N

TE
R

 R
D

 N

NASA BLVD W

BA
BC

O
C

K
S

T
S

MALABAR RD

BA
B

C
O

C
K

 S
T 

SE

CH
AL

LE
NG

ER
M

EM
O

R IA
L

PK
W

Y

A1A HW
Y

DIXIE HW
Y NE

O
R

LA
N

D
O

 AV
 S

CITRUS BLVD

C
O

U
R

TEN
AY PK

W
Y N

TR
O

PIC
A

L TR
L S

US 1 HW
Y

WICKHAM RD

BABCOCK ST

MICCO RD

GRANT RD

A1A H
W

Y
 N

FR
ID

AY R
D

COCOA BEACH CSWY W

M
IN

TO
N

 R
D

U.S. 1 HW
Y

U
S 1 H

W
Y S

PL
AN

TA
TI

O
N

 D
R

STUCK W
AY R

D

OSMOSIS DR SW

192 HWY

US
1

HW
Y

N

A1A HW
Y

U
S 1 H

W
Y

M ICCO RD

192 HWY

A1A HW
Y

A1A HW
Y

GRANT RD

µ

Brevard County Employment Density

PALM BAY RD

D
AI

R
Y 

R
D

NASA B LVD W

BA
B

C
O

C
K

 S
T 

S

SARNO RD

FIFTH AV

D
IXIE H

W
Y N

E

NEW HAVEN AV W

LI
PS

C
O

M
B

 S
T

EBER BLVD

A1A H
W

Y
 N

M
IN

TO
N

 R
D

APO
LLO

 BLVD
 S

BA
B

C
O

C
K

 S
T

W
IC

KH
A

M
 R

D
M

IN
TO

N
 R

D

0 6 123
Miles

Source: 2009-2013 American Community 
Survey, FDOT, Brevard County

TITUSVILLE

CAPE CANAVERAL
COCOA

COCOA BEACH

SATELLITE BEACH

INDIAN HARBOUR BEACH

MELBOURNE

PALM BAY

WEST MELBOURNE

A t l a n t i c  
O c e a n

)¢

?ê

Cape Canaveral 
Air Station

&
Kennedy 

Space Center

Indian River

Legend
SCAT Routes

MELBOURNE

WEST MELBOURNE

§̈¦I-95

KING ST W

U
S 1 H

W
Y N

C
LEAR

LAKE
 R

D

520 HWY

MURR
E

LL
R

D

G
R

ISSOM

P KWY

SR 524 H
WY

KING ST
MERRITT AV E

CONE RD

C
O

U
R

TEN
AY PK

W
Y

TR
O

PIC
A

L TR
L S

FI
S

KE
 B

LV
D

COCOA

§̈¦I-95
SOUTH ST

GARDEN ST

DAIRY RD

P
A

R
K

AV
S

CARPENTER
R

D
N

H
O

P
KIN

S AV
 S

US 1 HW
Y N

US 1 HW
Y

BAR
N

A AV

46 HWY

D
IXIE

AV N

FO
R

D
 R

D

46 HWY

TITUSVILLE

Indian River

Indian River

PALM BAY

)l

)l

§̈¦I-95

OSCEOLA

)l

Employees Per Acre
0 - 1.17

1.18 - 2.56

2.57 - 3.95

3.96 - 5.35

 > 5.35



Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan| Section 1: Development Plan 30 

 

Table 13: Major Destinations 

Destinations Address City State Zip Code 
Fixed-Route 

Service 
Availability 

American Police Hall of Fame 6350 Horizon Dr Titusville FL 32780 Route 1 
American Red Cross Space Coast 

Chapter 
1700 Cedar Street Rockledge FL 32955 

Route 1 and 
6 

Astronaut Hall of Fame 6225 Vectorspace Blvd Titusville FL 32780 Route 1 

Barrier Island Sanctuary 8385 Florida A1A 
Melbourne 

Beach 
FL 32951 No Routes 

Brevard Art Museum 1463 Highland Ave 
Melbourne 

Beach 
FL 32935 

Route 1 and 
33 

Brevard Community College Cocoa 1519 Clearlake Rd Cocoa FL 32922 Route 6 
Brevard Community College 

Melbourne 
3865 N Wickham Rd Melbourne FL 32935 

Route 1 and 
28 

Brevard Community College Palm 
Bay 

250 Community College Pkwy Palm Bay FL 32909 Route 5 

Brevard Community College 
Planetarium and Observatory 

3865 N Wickham Rd 
Melbourne 

Beach 
FL 32935 

Route 1 and 
28 

Brevard Community College 
Titusville 

1311 North US Highway 1 Titusville FL 32796 
Route 2 and 

5 

Brevard County Government Center 
2725 Judge Fran Jamieson 

Way 
Viera FL 32940 Route 1 

Brevard County Government 
Services Complex 

2575 N Courtenay Pkwy Merritt Island FL 32953 Route 3 

Brevard County Manatees Baseball 
Complex 

5800 Stadium Parkway Viera FL 32940 Route 1 

Brevard County Service Complex 
Palm Bay 

450 Cogan Dr Palm Bay FL 32907 No Routes 

Brevard County Service Complex 
South 

1515 Sarno Rd Melbourne FL 32935 
Route 1 and 

24 
Brevard County Service Complex 

North 
400 South St Titusville FL 32780 

Route 1, 2, 
and 5 

Brevard Museum of History and 
Natural Science 

2201 Michigan Ave Cocoa FL 32926 
Proximity to 

Route 6 

Brevard Zoo 8225 North Wickham Rd Melbourne FL 32940 
Route 1 and 

7 

Canaveral National Seashore 212 S Washington Ave Titusville FL 32796 
Route 2 and 

5 
Cape Canaveral Hospital 701 W Cocoa Beach Cswy Cocoa Beach FL 32931 Route 4 

Cape Canaveral Public Library 201 Polk Ave Cape Canaveral FL 32920 Route 9 
Central Brevard Library & Reference 

Center 
308 Forrest Ave Cocoa Beach FL 32922 Route 1 

Cocoa Area Chamber of Commerce 400 Fortenberry Rd Merritt Island FL 32952 Route 3 

Cocoa Beach City Hall 2 S Orlando Ave Cocoa Beach FL 32932 Route 9 

Cocoa Beach Public Library 550 N Brevard Ave Cocoa Beach FL 32931 Route 9 

Deuk Spine Institute 8043 Spyglass Hill Rd Melbourne FL 32940 Route 7 

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr Library 955 E University Blvd Melbourne FL 32920 Route 27 



Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan| Section 1: Development Plan 31 

 

Destinations Address City State Zip Code 
Fixed-Route 

Service 
Availability 

Eau Gallie Public Library 1521 Pineapple Ave Melbourne FL 32935 Route 33 
Florida Historical Society/ Rossetter 

House Museum 
1320 Highland Ave Melbourne FL 32935 

Route 1 and 
33 

Franklin T. DeGroodt Public Library 6475 Minton Rd SE Palm Bay FL 32909 
Route 1, 22, 

and 23 
Heneger Center for the Performing 

Arts 
625 E New Haven Ave Melbourne FL 32901 

Route 21 
and 26 

Historic Cocoa Village 1 Oleander St Cocoa FL 32922 
Route 4 and 

6 
Holmes Regional Medical Center 1350 S. Hickory Street Melbourne FL 32901 Route 21 

Kennedy Space Center   FL  No Routes 

Liberty Bell Museum 1601 Oak St Melbourne FL 32901 
Route 21 
and 26 

Maxwell C King Center for the 
Performing Arts 

3865 N Wickham Rd Melbourne FL 32935 
Route 1 and 

28 

Melbourne Beach Public Library 324 Ocean Ave 
Melbourne 

Beach 
FL 32951 No Routes 

Melbourne City Hall 900 E Strawbridge Ave Melbourne FL 32901 
Route 21 
and 26 

Melbourne Public Library 540 E Fee Ave Melbourne FL 32901 Route 21 
Melbourne/Palm Bay Area Chamber 

of Commerce 
1005 Strawbridge Ave Melbourne FL 32901 Route 26 

Merritt Island Public Library 1195 N Courtenay Pkwy Merritt Island FL 32953 Route 3 

Mims/Scottsmoor Public Library 3615 Lionel Rd Mims FL 32754 Route 5 
North Brevard Children's Medical 

Center 
1653 Jess Parrish Ct Titusville FL 32976 

Route 2 and 
5 

Palm Bay City Hall 120 Malabar Rd Palm Bay FL 32907 
Route 1, 

Route 22, 
Route 23 

Palm Bay Public Library 1520 Port Malabar Blvd NE Palm Bay FL 32905 Route 27 

Port Canaveral 445 Challenger Rd Cape Canaveral FL 32920 Route 9 

Port St. John Public Library 6500 Carole Ave Port St John FL 32927 No Routes 

Rockledge/Viera City hall 1600 Huntington Lane Rockledge FL 32955 
Route 1 and 

6 
Satellite Beach Public Library 751 Jamaica Blvd Satellite Beach FL 32937 No Routes 

Satellite Beach City Hall 565 Cassia Blvd Satellite Beach FL 32937 No Routes 

Sebastian Inlet State Park 9700 S Hwy A1A 
Melbourne 

Beach 
FL 32951 No Routes 

South Mainland Public Library 7921 Ron Beatty Blvd Micco FL 32976 No Routes 

Suntree/Viera Public Library 902 Jordan Blass Dr Melbourne FL 32940 Route 1 
Titusville Area Chamber of 

Commerce 
2000 S Washington Ave Titusville FL 32780 Route 1 

Titusville City Hall 555 S. Washington Ave Titusville FL 32796 
Route 1, 2, 

and 5 
Titusville Public Library 2121 S Hopkins Ave Titusville FL 32780 Route 2 



Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan| Section 1: Development Plan 32 

 

Destinations Address City State Zip Code 
Fixed-Route 

Service 
Availability 

Valiant Air Command Warbird 
Museum 

6600 Tico Rd Titusville FL 32780 Route 1 

West Melbourne City Hall 2240 Minton Rd 
West 

Melbourne 
FL 32904 Route 25 

West Melbourne Public Library 2755 Wingate Blvd 
West 

Melbourne 
FL 32904 Route 25 

Based on the existing transit services and concentrations of targeted populations, the following needs 
have been identified as priority areas for increased mobility options. Needs that may be eligible activities 
under the Section 5310 program have also been identified as part of the needs assessment and were 
chosen based upon a high percentage of target populations combined with a lack of existing 
transportation service. 

• Transportation services to “transit deserts” where there are greater numbers of target 
populations, including additional service within the City of Titusville and expanded transportation 
service to Port St. John and other surrounding areas. There is also a need for additional transit 
service in the south portion of the county near Micco. 

• Increased frequencies and later evening hours on the fixed-route transit system.  

• Transfer points for improved mobility across the north and south portions of the county and 
access to transportation services in the surrounding counties. 

• Bus stop accessibility improvements. 

• Additional agreements with municipalities for the installation and cleaning of bus shelters, 
benches, and pads. 

• Coordinating with other volunteer organizations to expand the number of volunteers in the 
Volunteers in Motion program. 

• Obtaining additional funding for expanding the paratransit system, the Volunteers in Motion 
program, and for agency vanpools to provide transportation services to clients. 

BARRIERS TO COORDINATION 

Space Coast Area Transit and the Space Coast TPO coordinate regularly for opportunities to address 
barriers to transportation coordination within Brevard County. Some of the issues and barriers to 
transportation and coordination within Brevard County are summarized below. 

• The inability to obtain local matching funds for federal and state grants is a barrier to 
implementing new transportation services. Space Coast Area Transit recently returned an FDOT 
Service Development grant to provide a regional transit route connecting with Orange County due 
to the lack of a local match for the grant. 

• Funding has been reduced within the draft budget and Space Coast Area Transit will be tasked 
with removing one bus from an existing route to operate within the budget constraints. While 
there are transportation needs, Space Coast Area Transit must make efficiency improvements 



Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan| Section 1: Development Plan 33 

 

using the existing resources due to a lack of any additional funding for transit improvements or 
new services. At the same time, there is a need for additional weekend service, particularly in 
Mims, West Cocoa, and Viera where there is no Saturday service, the Cocoa/Rockledge route 
needs an additional Saturday bus, and the Route 1 (Titusville to Melbourne) operates only every 
two hours. Also, there are only three fixed-routes currently operating on Sunday. 

• Ridership growth and overcrowding on the buses is resulting in on-time performance issues and 
a need to improve existing services rather than expand service to new areas. In addition, strollers, 
shopping bags, and bicycles have added to overcrowding issues on the buses. 

• Bus stop accessibility and maintenance improvements are needed at the bus stops. Space Coast 
Area Transit recently completed an inventory of over 850 bus stops, with only 11 of the stops in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Space Coast Area Transit has prepared 
estimated costs for improvements at the stops and a five-year phased implementation plan to be 
used as a guide for improvements. However, based on the anticipated annual revenues and total 
planning-level cost estimates for improvements, Space Coast Area Transit will need to seek 
additional funding to improve accessibility at the existing bus stops. 

• Vehicle operator retention has become an issue for Space Coast Area Transit based on the 
operator’s pay grades.  

Public meeting participants were asked to identify what they believe are the greatest barriers to public 
transportation in Brevard County. The top three barriers that were identified are listed below. 

1. There are transit deserts in the county where there is no public transportation available. There 
are only a few left, but the areas are barriers to transportation. For example, there are limited 
transportation services available in Titusville. The existing route has only one bus that operates 
on a loop route and people sometimes walk five miles to access the fixed-route. Route frequencies 
and span of service can also leave individuals abandoned based on the timing of their travel needs. 

2. The infrastructure is inaccessible and there needs to be more bike lockers not only for passengers 
riding the bicycles, but also to reduce the number of bikes on the buses for other passengers on-
board the bus. In addition, as FDOT works on road widening and road surfacing projects pads and 
sidewalks will be added to improve accessibility in Brevard County.  

3. The cost of transportation is a barrier for some people. The availability of discounted weekly and 
monthly passes and programs to provide passes to low-income individuals is beneficial. 

GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND STRATEGIES 

Goals, objectives, and strategies are critical to the implementation of the TDSP. This section includes the 
Space Coast Area Transit long range goals, specific measureable objectives that identify actions that can 
be taken to achieve the goals, and strategies that will be conducted to achieve the objectives. The goals, 
objectives, and strategies will be reviewed annually to determine the progress towards achieving the long 
range goals and corresponding objectives. Some goals that are still identified as a need that were not 
achieved from the 2007 Major TDSP and 2012 Minor TDSP due to lack of funding have been maintained 
in this Major TDSP Update. 



Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan| Section 1: Development Plan 34 

 

Goal 1: Secure funding necessary to meet the service needs of the Transportation Disadvantaged and 
improve mobility in Brevard County. 

Objective 1.1: Investigate and pursue all available funding opportunities to support and expand existing 
transportation services. 

Strategy 1.1.1: Encourage previous New Freedom subrecipients to apply for operational funds 
through other grant opportunities, including the Section 5310 competitive grant application 
process for the provision of transportation for elderly persons and persons with disabilities.  

Strategy 1.1.2: Identify funds to support later evening services that were previously funded 
through the JARC program to maintain the current levels of service. 

Strategy 1.1.3: Work with local agencies to continue to receive sufficient funding to provide 
agency trips. 

Strategy 1.1.4: Identify local funding options, including but not limited to the 9th Cent Gas Tax. 

Objective 1.2: Continue to pursue local public and private funding to provide operating assistance for the 
fixed-route and paratransit programs.  

Strategy 1.2.1: Develop and meet annually with a core group of transit advocates including elected 
officials, community advocates, agency heads, education leaders, and business leaders from the 
Economic Development Council of Florida’s Space Coast, Florida’s Space Coast Office of Tourism, 
and the Space Coast Economic Development Commission to discuss and identify future funding 
opportunities for transit. 

Strategy 1.2.2: Educate the general public and local decision makers on the importance of public 
transportation and the need for local financial support. 

Strategy 1.2.3: Identify and accommodate opportunities for private sector participation and 
public/private partnerships in funding the public transportation system. 

Strategy 1.2.4: Continue marketing efforts to demonstrate Space Coast Area Transit’s ability to 
leverage local funds  

Strategy 1.2.5: Coordinate with the Space Coast TPO for the use of transit planning funds to 
support and improve transportation services for the Transportation Disadvantaged. 

Objective 1.3: Pursue matching funds for the operation of regional transit service to connect with other 
transit agencies and facilitate cross county travel.  

Strategy 1.3.1: Meet with public transportation providers in other counties, including LYNX 
(Orange, Osceola, and Seminole counties), Votran (Volusia County), and GoLine (Indian River 
County) to identify any opportunities for coordinating and funding regional transit services. 



Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan| Section 1: Development Plan 35 

 

Objective 1.4: Continue to coordinate and obtain the necessary funding from the CTD, FDOT, and FTA for 
the provision of ADA and TD transportation services. 

Strategy 1.4.1: Attend opportunities to advocate and encourage support for the TD population 
and transportation services. 

Strategy 1.4.2: Continue to successfully complete reporting requirements by submitting an annual 
TDSP update, Annual Operating Report, and quarterly planning grant progress reports. 

Strategy 1.4.3: Continue to comply with all state and federal reporting and compliance monitoring 
requirements for grant recipients. 

Goal 2: Implement a fully coordinated transportation system integrated with other transportation 
modes and Brevard County’s Complete Streets principles.  

Objective 2.1: Maximize coordination with public and private agencies and other transportation operators 
in Brevard County. 

Strategy 2.1.1: Maintain existing coordination contracts and execute new ones, where feasible, 
needed, and cost-effective.  

Strategy 2.1.2: Continue to support the Volunteers in Motion program and explore opportunities 
for expansion of the program through partnerships with Brevard County volunteer programs. 

Strategy 2.1.3: Participate in coordination activities where information can be distributed to 
potential partners and customers. 

Objective 2.2: Communicate and coordinate with other counties to promote ride-sharing practices and 
transportation arrangements. 

Strategy 1.3.2: Meet annually with public transportation providers in other counties, including 
LYNX (Orange, Osceola, and Seminole counties), Votran (Volusia County), and GoLine (Indian River 
County) to identify any opportunities for ride-sharing. 

Objective 2.3: Encourage the connections between transit, land use, and Complete Streets principles 
through coordination with the TPO, Brevard County, and municipalities in the growth management 
process including comprehensive plans, land use codes, corridor studies, and site review of development  

Strategy 2.3.1: Continue to coordinate with cities in the county, including existing cities with 
agreements for bus benches and shelters and the provision of transit service. 

Strategy 2.3.2: Continue to coordinate with EFSC for the placement of shelters and service for 
students. 

Strategy 2.3.3: Meet with non-contracted cities to discuss opportunities to develop agreements 
for bus shelters, benches, and transit service. 



Space Coast Area Transit Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan| Section 1: Development Plan 36 

 

Goal 3: Enhance citizen mobility by increasing availability of public transportation service to the 
county’s citizens.   

Objective 3.1: Ensure that the fixed-route, vanpools, and paratransit systems continue to remain 
responsive to the needs of the transportation disadvantaged. 

Strategy 3.1.1: Continue pursuing funding for the expansion of evening and weekend fixed-route 
service. 

Strategy 3.1.2: Provide connectivity throughout the county with a focus on major attractors. 

Strategy 3.1.3: Establish express bus service along major corridors for increased frequencies. 

Strategy 3.1.4: Continue pursuing funding for the expansion of fixed-route service to reduce 
transit deserts in Brevard County, including areas such as Port St. John.  

Objective 3.2: Continue maximizing use of the fixed-route bus service for the transportation 
disadvantaged. 

Strategy 3.2.1: Ensure new bus stops are accessible to persons with disabilities and meet 
Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG) compliance requirements. 

Strategy 3.2.2: Annually implement phased improvements that were established as part of the 
Space Coast Area Transit ADA bus stop assessment completed in 2015. 

Strategy 3.2.3: Provide fixed-route travel training for transportation disadvantaged patrons 
wanting to make use of the fixed-route services. 

Strategy 3.2.4: Install bus shelters and benches at appropriate locations, when feasible and 
agreements are in place with the municipalities. 

Strategy 3.2.5: Conduct a comprehensive operational analysis to identify efficient transfer points 
that may enable transportation disadvantaged passengers using the fixed-route service.  

Objective 3.3: Implement increased paratransit service. 

Strategy 3.3.1: Reduce the number of paratransit cancellations and no-shows. 

Strategy 3.3.2: Develop and adhere to a vehicle acquisition and replacement plan to ensure that 
the needed capacity is available. 

Strategy 3.3.3: Provide patrons with alternate trip travel times that may better accommodate 
their needs due to the availability of extra capacity on specific days with fewer trip reservations.  

Strategy 3.3.4: Coordinate with the Volunteers in Motion program to transport regular passengers 
that have occasional trip requests beyond the ¾-mile ADA boundary.  





































































































































































































































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Annual Approval of the By-Laws 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The By-Laws of the Brevard County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged is required to be updated and approved by the LCB every year.  Currently, there 
are no changes to the existing By-Laws. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
Approval of the By-Laws for the Local Coordinating Board.  If the LCB wishes to make significant 
changes, the By-Laws will be brought back to the next LCB Meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Draft By-Laws of the Brevard County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged  
  

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

VI.A. 



 
 

BY-LAWS OF THE 
 

BREVARD COUNTY 
 

LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD 
 

FOR THE 
 

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 
 

 
 
 
 

2016 
 



BY-LAWS OF THE 
BREVARD COUNTY 

LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 
 
 ARTICLE I:  PREAMBLE 
 
 
  Section 1:  Preamble:  The following sets forth the by-laws which shall serve to guide 
the proper functioning of the coordination of transportation services provided to the transportation 
disadvantaged through the Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board.  The intent is to 
provide procedures and policies for fulfilling the requirements of Chapter 427, Florida Statutes, Rule 
41-2, Florida Administrative Code (FAC), and subsequent laws setting forth requirements for the 
coordination of transportation services to the transportation disadvantaged. 
 
 ARTICLE II:  NAME AND PURPOSE 
 
 
  Section 1:  Name:  The name of the Coordinating Board shall be the LOCAL 
COORDINATING BOARD FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED, hereinafter referred 
to as the Board. 
 
  Section 2:  Purpose:  The primary purpose of the Board is to assist the Designated 
Official Planning Agency in identifying local service needs and providing information, advice, and 
direction to the Community Transportation Coordinator on the coordination of services to be provided 
to the transportation disadvantaged pursuant to Chapter 427.0157, Florida Statues. 
 
 ARTICLE III:  MEMBERSHIP, APPOINTMENT, TERM OF OFFICE, 
 AND TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
  Section 1:  Voting Members.  In accordance with Chapter 427.0157, Florida Statues, all 
members of the Board shall be appointed by the designated official planning agency, which is the 
Space Coast Transportation Planning Organization (TPO). 
 
  All agency members shall be recommended in writing to the TPO Chair or Staff 
Director.  All non-agency member appointments shall be recommended by the Non-Agency Member 
Selection Sub-committee to the TPO Chair or Staff Director. 
 
  The following agencies or groups shall be represented on the Board as voting 
members: 
 

1. An elected official appointed by the TPO (The TPO shall appoint one of these elected 
officials as the Chair); 

2. A local representative of the Florida Department of Transportation; 
3. A local representative of the Florida Department of Children and Family Services; 
4. A local representative of the Public Education Community which could include, but not 

be limited to, a representative of the District School Board, School Board Transportation 
Office, or Headstart Program in areas where the School District is responsible; 

5. In areas where they exist, a local representative of the Florida Division of Vocational 
Rehabilitation or the Division of Blind Services, representing the Department of 



Education; 
6. A person recommended by the local Veterans Service Office representing the veterans 

of the county; 
7. A person who is recognized by the Florida Association for Community Action 

(President), representing the economically disadvantaged in the county; 
8. A person over sixty representing the elderly in the county; 
9. A person with a disability representing the disabled in the county; 
10. Two citizen advocate representatives in the county; one who must be a person who 

uses the transportation service(s) of the system as their primary means of transportation; 
11. A local representative for children at risk; 
12. In areas where they exist, the Chairperson or designee of the local Mass Transit or 

Public Transit System’s Board, except in cases where they are also the Community 
Transportation Coordinator; 

13. A local representative of the Florida Department of Elderly Affairs; 
14. An experienced representative of the local private for profit transportation industry.  In 

areas where such representative is not available, a local private non-profit representative 
will be appointed, except where said representative is also the Community 
Transportation Coordinator; 

15. A local representative of the Florida Agency for Health Care Administration; 
16. A representative of the Regional Workforce Development Board established in Chapter 

445, Florida Statues; and  
17. A representative of the local medical community, which may include, but not be limited 

to, kidney dialysis centers, long term care facilities, assisted living facilities, hospitals, 
local health department or other home and community based services, etc. 

 
  Section 2:  Alternate Members.  Each member of the Board shall have an alternate.  
Each represented agency shall appoint an alternate, non-agency alternates shall be appointed by the 
TPO.  Alternates for a board member who cannot attend a meeting must be representative of the 
same interest as the member.  Each alternate may vote only in the absence of that member on a one-
vote-per-member basis.  Each member must provide written declaration of his or her designated 
alternate. 
 
  Section 3:  Non-Voting Members.  Additional non-voting members may be appointed by 
the TPO. 
 
  Section 4:  Terms of Appointment.  Consistent Rule 41-2.012(5), except for the Chair, 
the members of the Board shall be appointed for three-year staggered terms with initial membership 
being appointed equally for one, two, and three years.  The Chair shall serve until replaced by the 
TPO. 
 
  Section 5:  Termination of Membership.  Any member of the Board may resign at any 
time, by notice in writing, to the Chair.  Unless otherwise specified in such notice, such resignation 
shall take effect upon receipt thereof by the Chair.  Each member of the Board is expected to 
demonstrate his/her interest in the Board's activities through attendance of the scheduled meetings, 
except for reasons of an unavoidable nature.  In each instance of an unavoidable absence, the 
absent member should ensure that his/her alternate will attend.  The TPO may review, and consider 
rescinding the appointment of any voting member of the Board who fails to attend three (3) 
consecutive meetings. 
 



  Section 6:  Technical Advisors.  Upon majority vote of a quorum of the Coordinating 
Board, Technical Advisors may be approved for the purpose of providing the Coordinating Board with 
technical advice as necessary.  The technical advisors shall not be allowed to vote. 
 
 ARTICLE IV:  OFFICERS AND DUTIES 
 
 
  Section 1:  Number.  The officers of the Board shall be a Chair and a Vice-Chair. 
 
  Section 2:  Chair.  The Space Coast Transportation Planning Organization shall appoint 
an elected official, to serve as the official Chair to preside at all Coordinating Board meetings.  The 
Chair shall preside at all meetings, and in the event of his/her absence, or at his/her discretion; the 
Vice-Chair shall assume the powers and duties of the Chair.  The Chair shall serve until replaced by 
the TPO. 
 
  Section 3:  Vice-Chair.  The Board shall hold an organizational meeting each year, for 
the purpose of electing a Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chair shall be elected by a majority vote of a quorum 
of the members of the Board present and voting at the organizational meeting.  The Vice-Chair shall 
serve a term of one year starting with the next meeting.  The nominations for the Vice-Chair shall be 
taken from members present at the organizational meeting. 
 
 ARTICLE V:  BOARD MEETING 
 
 
  Section 1:  Regular Meetings.  The Board shall meet as often as necessary in order to 
meet its responsibilities.  However, as required by Chapter 427.0157, Florida Statutes, the Board shall 
meet at least quarterly. 
 
  Section 2:  Notice of Meetings.  Notices and tentative agendas shall be sent to all Board 
members, other interested parties, and the news media within a reasonable amount of time prior to 
the Board meeting.  Such notice shall state the date, time, and the place of the meeting. 
 
  Section 3:  Quorum.  At all meetings of the Board the presence in person of a majority 
of the voting members shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business.  In the absence of a quorum, those present may, without notice other than by 
announcement at the meeting, recess the meeting from time to time, until a quorum shall be present.  
At any such recessed meeting, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at 
the meeting as originally called, but no action may be taken until a quorum is present. 
 
  Section 4:  Voting.  At all meetings of the Board at which a quorum is present, all 
matters, except as otherwise expressly required by law or these by-laws, shall be decided by the vote 
of a majority of the members of the Board present. 
 
  Section 5:  Parliamentary Procedures.  The Board will conduct business using 
parliamentary procedures according to Robert's Rules of Order (most recently revised), except when 
in conflict with these by-laws. 
 
 ARTICLE VI:  STAFF 
 
 



  Section 1:  General.  The TPO shall provide the Board or arrange for sufficient staff 
support and resources to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities as set forth in Chapter 
427.0157, Florida Statutes.  These responsibilities include providing sufficient staff to manage and 
oversee the operations of the Board and assist in the scheduling of meetings, preparing meeting 
agenda packets, and other necessary administrative duties. 
 
 
 ARTICLE VII:  BOARD DUTIES 
 
 
  Section 1:  Board Duties.  The Board shall perform the following duties as specified in 
Rule 41-2, FAC. 
 
  
 1. Maintain official meeting minutes, including an attendance roster, reflecting official 

actions and provide a copy of same to the Transportation Disadvantaged Commission 
and the Chair of the TPO. 

 
 2. Review and approve the Memorandum of Agreement including the Transportation 

Disadvantaged Service Plan.  
 
 3. Evaluate all services provided by the Community Transportation Coordinator under the 

designated service plan.  On an annual basis provide the TPO with an evaluation of the 
Coordinator's performance. This evaluation shall be based on state Transportation 
Disadvantaged Commission standards, the annual service plan, and should include 
recommendations regarding renewal of the Community Transportation Coordinator's 
contract. 

 
 4. In cooperation with the Coordinator, review and provide recommendations to the 

Transportation Disadvantaged Commission and the TPO on all applications for local, 
State, or Federal funds relating to transportation disadvantaged in the county. This is to 
ensure that any transportation disadvantaged expenditure within the county, provides 
service in the most effective and efficient manner. 

 
 5. Review coordination strategies, for service provision to the transportation 

disadvantaged in the county to seek innovative ways to improve cost effectiveness, 
efficiency, safety, working hours, and types of service in an effort to increase ridership 
to a broader population.  Such strategies should also encourage multi-county and 
regional transportation service agreements between area Coordinator and consolidation 
of adjacent counties, when it is appropriate and cost effective to do so. 

 
 6. In coordination with the Coordinator, jointly develop applications for funds that may 

become available. 
 
 7. Prepare by October 1st an Annual Report, to be consolidated with the Coordinator's 

Annual Operating Report, outlining the accomplishments and activities or other areas of 
interest to the State Commission and the County Commission for the most recent 
operating year period. 

 



 8. Assist the TPO in preparing a Transportation Disadvantaged Element in their 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

 
 ARTICLE VIII:  SUBCOMMITTEES 
 
 
  Section 1:  Grievance Subcommittee.  The Coordinating Board shall appoint a 
Grievance Subcommittee to process, investigate, resolve complaints that cannot be solved by 
Coordinator or Operator, and make recommendations to the Board for improvement of service from 
agencies, users, or potential users of the system in the county.  This subcommittee shall be made up 
of three (3) Coordinating Board Members and any number of alternates.  The Grievance 
Subcommittee shall meet as often as necessary to resolve grievances in a timely manner. 
 
  Section 2:  Others.  Other subcommittees shall be designated by the Chair, as 
necessary, to investigate and report on specific subject areas of interest to the Board and to deal with 
administrative and legislative procedures.  
 
 ARTICLE IX:  COMMUNICATION WITH OTHER 
 AGENCIES AND ENTITIES 
 
 
  Section 1: General.  The TPO authorizes the Board to communicate directly with other 
agencies and entities, as necessary, to carry out its duties and responsibilities in accordance with 
Rule 41-2 FAC.  
 
 ARTICLE X:  AMENDMENTS 
 
 
  Section 1:  General.  The by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of 
members present, if a quorum exists, provided the proposed change(s) is/are mailed to all members 
at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. 
 
 
 ARTICLE XI:  CERTIFICATION 
 
 
  The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she is the Chair of the Transportation 
Disadvantaged Coordinating Board and that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of the By-
laws of this Board as adopted by the Brevard County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged the 16th Day of November 2015. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Mayor Rocky Randels, Chair 
Local Coordinating Board 
 
 
  





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Annual Approval of the Grievance Procedures 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Grievance Procedures of the Brevard County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged is required to be updated and approved by the LCB every year.  Currently, there 
are no changes to the existing Grievance Procedures. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
Approval of the Grievance Procedures for the Local Coordinating Board.  If the LCB wishes to 
make significant changes, the Grievance Procedures will be brought back to the next LCB 
Meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Draft Grievance Procedures of the Brevard County Local Coordinating Board for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged   

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

VI.B. 



 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

 
BREVARD COUNTY 

 
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD 

 
FOR THE 

 
TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED 

 
 
 

2016 
  



GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES OF THE 
 

BREVARD COUNTY 
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR THE TRANSPORTATIN DISADVANTAGED 

 
 

ARTICLE I:  PREAMBLE 
 
 

Section 1.  Preamble:  The following sets forth the grievance procedures, which shall serve 
to guide the Brevard County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged, 
serving to assist the Community Transportation Coordinator.  The intent is to provide procedures 
and policies for fulfilling the requirements of Chapter 427, Florida Statutes, and Rule 41-2.012 of 
the Florida Administrative Code (FAC), setting forth requirements for the establishment of 
grievance procedures and Grievance Subcommittee procedures to resolve grievances or 
complaints from agencies, users, potential users, subcontractors, and other interested parties.  
While the intent of this Subcommittee will be to resolve service issues, this procedure shall 
incorporate a multi-layered approach to problem resolution.  The first notice of a grievance should 
go directly to the contracted Transportation Disadvantaged Provider.  If the Transportation 
Disadvantaged Provider is unable to resolve the problem, the Community Transportation 
Coordinator and Grievance Subcommittee are given an opportunity to review. 
 
 

ARTICLE II:  GRIEVANCE SUBCOMMITTEE NAME AND PURPOSE 
 
 

Section 1.  Name:  The name of the subcommittee to resolve grievances or complaints for 
the Brevard County Local Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged shall be the 
GRIEVANCE SUBCOMMITTEE. 
 

Section 2.  Purpose:  The primary purpose of the Grievance Sub-Committee is to process, 
investigate, resolve complaints, and make recommendation to the Local Coordinating Board for 
improvements of service from agencies, users, or potential users of the system in Brevard County.  
The Local Coordinating Board shall establish procedures to provide regular opportunities for issues 
to be brought before the Grievance Subcommittee, which shall meet as often as necessary to 
resolve complaints in a timely manner. 
 
 

ARTICLE III:  DEFINITION OF GRIEVANCE 
 
 

Section 1.  Definition:  For the purpose of the Local Coordinating Board and the Grievance 
Subcommittee, a grievance is defined as: 
 
 “a circumstance or condition thought to be unjust, and ground for complaint or resentment.” 
 

ARTICLE IV:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES 
 
 



Section 1.  General:  The following procedures are established to provide regular 
opportunities for grievances to be brought before the Grievance Subcommittee. 
 

Section 2.  Filing a Grievance:  It is assumed that a Complainant would direct any initial 
concern to the Transportation Disadvantaged Operator before initiating the Grievance Procedure.  
Should an interested party wish to file a grievance in order to receive improved service from the 
Transportation Disadvantaged Program, that grievance must be filed in writing to the Brevard 
County Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC).  The Complainant should try to demonstrate 
or establish a clear violation of a specific law, regulation, or contractual arrangement.  
Complainants may use the grievance form and mail to:  Transit Director, Space Coast Area 
Transit, 401 S. Varr. Ave., Cocoa, Florida  32922. 
 
 

A. The Complainant shall complete the Grievance form.  The Complainant may request 
assistance in completing the form from the Community Transportation Coordinator.  
The form is only the vehicle for following procedure and should not prevent the 
Complainant from following through with necessary action. 

 
B. The Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) shall forward all the initial 

complaints for review by the Transportation Disadvantaged Provider.  The Provider 
must respond in writing no later than seven (7) working days from the date the 
grievance is received. 

 
C. The Complainant can forward issues for review and consideration to the Grievance 

Subcommittee by completing the form and returning the form to the Community 
Transportation Coordinator (CTC).  The CTC will schedule the Grievance Committee 
to review the issue & notify the Complainant of the meeting date, time, and location. 

 
D. The Grievance Subcommittee shall endeavor to resolve a grievance.  The Grievance 

Subcommittee shall issue its decision in a report. 
 

Section 3.  Appeal to the Local Coordinating Board:  The decision of the Grievance 
Subcommittee may be appealed in writing to the Local Coordinating Board within five (5) working 
days from the date when the complainant receives written notice from the Grievance 
Subcommittee makes its decision. 
 
 Once an appeal has been received, the Local Coordinating Board shall meet and render its 
decision at its next meeting.  The complainant shall be notified in writing of the date, time, and 
place of the Local Coordinating Board meeting where the appeal shall be heard.  This written 
notice shall be mailed at least ten (10) days in advance of the meeting.  A written copy of the 
decision made by the Coordinating Board shall be mailed to all parties involved within ten (10) 
days of the date of the decision. 
 

Section 4.  Appeal to the State Transportation Disadvantaged Commission Ombudsman 
Program:  Should the complainant remain dissatisfied with the decision of the Brevard County 
Local Coordinating Board, an appeal may be made in writing to the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Commission.  The appeal shall be addressed to: 
 

Ombudsman Program 
Florida Transportation Disadvantaged Commission 



605 Suwannee Street, MS-49 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450 or call 1-800-983-2435, 1-800-648-608 (TDD Line) 
 

 
ARTICLE V:  GRIEVANCE SUBCOMMITTEE PROCEDURES 

 
 

Section 1.  Discussion Schedule:  After receipt of the appealed grievance, the Transit 
Director shall schedule a discussion of the grievance at the next Grievance Subcommittee 
meeting. 
 

Section 2.  Notification:  The Space Coast Area Transit Staff shall send notice of the 
scheduled discussion in writing to the complainant and other interested parties.  The notices shall 
clearly state: 
 

1. date, time, and location of the meeting; 
2. purpose of the discussion and statement of issues involved. 

 
Section 3.  Written Decision:  Written decisions shall include the following information: 

 
1. an opinion and reasons for the decision based on information presented; and, 
2. a recommendation by the Grievance Subcommittee based on their investigation and 

findings. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI:  SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 
 

Section 1.  General:  When a meeting of the Grievance Subcommittee is necessary, staff to 
the Local Coordinating Board shall schedule a meeting for the Grievance Subcommittee to hear 
appealed grievances.  Grievance Subcommittee meetings shall, if possible, meet on the third 
Monday of the month. 
 
 

ARTICLE VII:  AMENDMENTS 
 
 

Section 1.  General:  The Coordinating Board Grievance Procedures may be amended by a 
simple majority of members present, if a quorum exists, providing the proposed change(s) is/are 
mailed to all members at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. 
 

Section 2.  Quorum:  At all meetings of the Coordinating Board, the presence in person of a 
majority of the voting members shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII:  CERTIFICATION 
 
 



The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she is the Chair of the Brevard County Transportation 
Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board and that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of 
the Grievance Procedures of this Coordinating Board as adopted by the Brevard County Local 
Coordinating Board for the Transportation Disadvantaged this 16th day of November 2015. 
 
 
 
Mayor Rocky Randels, Chair 
Brevard County Local Coordinating Board 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE: 
 
Member Reports 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
If any LCB member would like to make an announcement or ask if the LCB would address an item 
at the next meeting. 
 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
 
None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 

LCB AGENDA ITEM 
11/16/15 

VII. 




	BREVARD COUNTY
	LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD FOR
	TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED PROGRAM
	2015
	Fax      -  (321) 633-1905
	E-mail Matthew.Soss@brevardcounty.us 
	Diane Poitras

	2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way Bldg. B
	Viera, FL 32940
	Phone - (321) 633-2012
	Fax      - (321) 637-5432
	Phone - (321) 773-2691
	Samuel Weekley

	Alternates
	VACANT
	Disabled Representative 
	E-mail – lightells@sraflorida.org

	11/16/15
	Local Coordinating Board

	Final TDSP_10.30.2015  Compressed.pdf
	TDSP Certification
	LCB Roll Call Vote
	Section 1: Development Plan
	Introduction to the Service Area
	Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan
	Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program
	Background of the Community Transportation Coordinator
	Organization Chart
	Consistency Review of Other Plans
	Public Participation Process

	Service Area Profile and Demographics
	Service Area Description
	Demographics
	Population Profile
	Age Distribution
	Income Distribution
	Disability
	Employment

	Land Use

	Service Analysis
	Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged Program
	CTC Trend Analysis
	Performance Measures
	Effectiveness Measures
	Efficiency Measures
	Summary Results of Trend Analysis

	Needs Assessment
	Major Destinations

	Barriers to Coordination

	Goals, Objectives, and Strategies
	Implementation Schedule

	Section 2: Service Plan
	Operations Element
	Types, Hours, and Days of Service
	Fixed-Route Transit
	Paratransit Service
	VOLUNTEERS IN MOTION PROGRAM
	VANPOOL Program

	Accessing Services
	Transportation Operators and Coordination Contractors
	Public Transit Utilization
	School Bus Utilization
	Vehicle Inventory
	System Safety Program Plan Certification
	Inter-county Services
	Emergency Preparedness and Response
	Educational Efforts and Marketing
	Acceptable Alternatives
	Service Standards
	Local Complaint and Grievance Procedures and Process
	Community Transportation Coordinator Monitoring Procedures of Operators and Coordination Contractors

	Cost/Revenue Allocation and Rate Structure Justification

	Section 3: Quality Assurance
	CTC Evaluation Process

	Appendix A: Summary of Existing Plans and Documents
	State of Florida 5-Year & 20-Year TD Plan
	State of Florida 5-Year TD Plan
	Space Coast Area Transit TDSP Major Update (2007)
	Space Coast Area Transit TDSP Minor Update (2012)
	Space Coast Area Transit 2013-2022 Transit Development Plan Major Update
	Space Coast Area Transit 2015 Transit Development Plan Annual Update
	Space Coast TPO 2035 Adopted Long Range Transportation Plan
	Space Coast TPO Transportation Improvement Program
	Brevard County Comprehensive Plan
	City of Cocoa Comprehensive Plan (2010)
	City of Cocoa Beach Comprehensive Plan (2010)
	Town of Grant-Valkaria Comprehensive Plan (2010)
	City of Melbourne Comprehensive Plan (2010)
	City of Palm Bay Comprehensive Plan (2001)
	City of Rockledge Comprehensive Plan (2011)
	City of Satellite Beach Comprehensive Plan (2014)
	City of Titusville Comprehensive Plan (2014)
	City of West Melbourne Comprehensive Plan (2011)

	Appendix B: Local Coordinating Board Certification
	Appendix C: No-Show Policy
	Appendix D: Vehicle Inventory
	Appendix E: System Safety Program Plan Certification
	Appendix F: Space Coast Area Transit Grievance Procedure
	Appendix G: FCTD Rate Model Calculation spreadsheets
	Appendix H: Space Coast Area Transit TDLCB CTC Evaluation and Corrective Action Plan


